SE

ANTELOPE VALLEY COLLEGE
DISTANCE EDUCATION AND TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE
AGENDA
February 26, 2013
3:30 p.m. to 4:30 p.m.
L-201

r To conform to the open meeting act, the public may attend open sessions J

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
2. OPENING COMMENTS FROM THE CHAIRS
3. OPEN COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

4, APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a. November 13, 2012 Minutes (attached)
b. November 27, 2012 Minutes (attached)

5. ACTION ITEMS

6. DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. Rick Shaw, Director ITS/CIO - Introduction
b. Blackboard - Login Update; Compatible Web Browsers
c. Babson Online Education Report (attached)

7. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS
a. BE Workstation Guide
b. Faculty Issues — Mentorship, Guidelines for Course Development; Rubric for Course
Evaluation
c. Accreditation and Other Legal Issues
d. Website avconline.avc.edu and Data Collection

8. ADJOURNMENT

NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY
Antelope Valley College prohibits discrimination and harassment based on sex, gender, race, color, religion, national origin or
ancestry, age, disability, marital status, sexual orientation, cancer-related medical condition, or genetic predisposition. Upon
request, we will consider reasonable accommodation to permit individuals with protected disabilities to (1) complete the
employment or admission process, (b) perform essential job functions, (c) enjoy benefits and privileges of similarly-situated
individuals without disabilities, and (d) participate in instruction, programs, services, activities, or events.



SIFE

ANTELOPE VALLEY COLLEGE
DISTANCE EDUCATION AND TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE
MINUTES
February 26,2013
3:30 p.m. to 4:30 p.m.
L 201

To conform to the open meeting act, the public may attend open sessions

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
The February 26, 2013 Distance Education and Technology was called to order by Co-Chairs Dr. Nancy Bednar
and Dr. Charlotte Forte-Parnell, at 3:36 p.m.

2. OPENING COMMENTS FROM THE CHAIRS
Dr. Nancy Bednar welcomed members to the first Distance Education and Technology Committee (DETC)
meeting of the spring semester. She explained that the February 12, 2013 was cancelled because everyone was
too busy at with the start of the new semester. Dr. Bednar announced the resignation of Ken Shafer, Academic
Senate member to DETC. Mr. Shafer resigned due to his obligation to complete his dissertation. A call to fill
the vacancy is underway, with a deadline of March 4, 2013 for faculty to submit a letter of interest.

Dr. Charlotte Forte-Parnell discussed an update to the November 2012 Student Satisfaction Survey to be
compiled by the Chancellor’s office. In the next survey, fifty-three (53) colleges expressed interest in
participating in the survey; forty-four (44) colleges submitted their files; 77,957 student contacts were submitted
for participation. Students are being contacted to participate in the Student Satisfaction Survey. Not all students
will take part, but out of 7,000 responses thus far, 6,000 are complete. An additional 2,000 students have
engaged in the survey and are in the process of completion. The goal is to collect 354 responses per
campus/15,000 total . Final survey results are expected in late April or early May 2013. Dr. Parnell-Forte is
enthusiastic for the significant and meaningful way to gather accurate data for our students, compare data, and
share campus-wide.

Dr. Bednar discussed an upcoming conference for Massive Open Online Course (MOOC), an online course
aiming at large-scale participation and open access via the web. Dr. Bednar stated that one of our accreditation
agencies is working on how to teach these courses for credit. Dr. Charlotte Forte-Parnell suggested the
possibility of the Gates Institution creating financial resources to deal with popular courses or Basic Skills
courses. Dr. Bednar responded that these courses might not be effective for Basic Skills, which requires more
one-on-one to get students from the remedial level to the college level.

Mr. Rick Shaw stated that the initial MOOC course had 160,000 enrollees — 16,000 of which completed the
course for a certificate. The course was advertised largely by word of mouth. Dr. Forte-Parnell added that the
governor is proposing $32,000,000 to increase Distanced Education through universities and community
colleges.

Dr. Bednar discussed the move towards online open-source online textbooks for the most frequently taught text
books. There is a push to understand how to get students in the door, assessed, possessed and out the door,
charging the Distance Education and Technology Committee is on the cutting edge of what’s happening.

Dr. Tom O’Neil mentioned a recent email revealing a focus area of development in computer gaming and
simulation. Dr. Bednar added the push within discipline to work with simulations online.

3. OPEN COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC
None.

Approved: February 26, 2013 Distance Education & Technology Committee Meeting



4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a. November 13,2012 Minutes (attached)
A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of the November 13, 2012 meeting. Motion
carried with one (1) abstention.

b. November 27,2012 Minutes (attached)
A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of the November 13, 2012 meeting. Motion
carried with two (2) abstentions.

5. ACTION ITEMS
None.

6. DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. Rick Shaw, Director ITS/CIO — Introduction
Dr. Nancy Bednar introduced Mr. Rick Shaw, the new Information Technology Services (ITS)
Director/Chief Information Officer (CIO).

Dr. Forte-Parnell stated the merging of help desk and ITS was helpful and has cut down on confusion.
Mr. Charles Hood stated that Gmail is making his job much easier.

Mr. Rick Shaw reminded members he will never send email with link, requiring a receiver to enter a login
and password unless thru AVC. Dr. Bednar encouraged members to convey the message to their
appropriate divisions. There was discussion regarding the trouble the campus has had with email hacks and
spam, slowing delivery of everything and making it difficult to teach online.

Mr, Shaw discussed plans for the for wireless internet campuswide. Currently the price tag is $900,000 and
Mr. Shaw is reviewing the plan to downsize and stage it. He stated he will bring the next phase of the plan
to the DETC for prioritization. The largest investment will be control. The plan includes updating old
equipment.

b. Blackboard - Login Update; Compatible Web Browsers
Dr. Bednar announced the new identification statement on Blackboard. Mr. Mike Wilmes explained that
Blackboard has issues with Internet Explorer. Firefox, Chrome or Opera work fine. Members discussing
listing compatible browsers on the Blackboard login page. It was noted to advise the Palmdale campus
against the use of Internet Explorer with Blackboard. Dr. Charlotte Forte-Parnell suggested posting the list
to syllabi. Dr. Tom O’Neil suggesting emailing the list to students. Dr. Bednar stated the suggestions will be
made an action item next meeting, to send on to the Senate to ask for a recommendation on it as well.

¢. Babson Online Education Report (attached)
Dr. Bednar had a discussion with Mrs. Lowry, Vice President of Academic Affairs an accreditation issue
that came to her attention via the statewide faculty union. There has been a change in August 2012
guidelines for Distance Education. Dr. Bednar discussed the Accreditation process with Distance
Education, and that the Accreditor will ask to participate in the online class. With Performance Dashboard
Instructor and Accreditor Student — they will be in the online class for five (5) weeks. Rules changed in
August. Now every online instructor will have two (2) Accreditation examiners in their class. Dr. Bednar
had four (4) accreditation people in all of her shells. Dr. Bednar will send information to Ms. Nancy
Masters to Distribute to DETC. Dr. Bednar suggested to Mrs. Lowry to inform online faculty 5-6 weeks
prior to the Accreditation visit.

Mr. Joseph West inquired as to how many online classes AVC offers. Dr. Bednar stated that Administration
has decided to offer significantly fewer online classes in Fall 2013, with the decision directly linked to
retention in classes. Dr. Tom O’Neil interjected that many students believe online classes will be easier,
only to learn they are more challenging and eventually drop out.

Approved: February 26, 2013 Distance Education & Technology Committee Meeting



Mr. Brandon Zavala suggested a mandatory orientation requirement be added to the matriculation process.
Dr. Tom O’Neil, Dr. Bednar and other members agreed. Mr. Rick Shaw suggested that Mr. Greg Krynen
create a video with screen capture animation, so students will have a clear understanding of what the online
class encompasses.

Mr. Walter Briggs stated he has helped many students walk through orientation, stating the orientation
process should be mandatory, and should include a question and answer period. Mr. Zavala added that as
with financial aid, a mandatory 30-miute video orientation is required. He projected that a similar
mandatory orientation for online students would weed out 80% of students who would have left. The video
will summarize potential progression, and allow for an easier transition. Dr. Bednar will contact Ms.
Trimble directly.

Mr. Rick Shaw stated he will speak with Greg Krynen about development of a 15-20 minute orientation
video to explain how to use file, spell check and text boxes, open Blackboard and do various other things.
This would be a portion of matriculation that must be completed. This would be listed separately on the
webpage. Faculty can include it in their syllabi.

7. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS

a. BE Workstation Guide
[tem Tabled.

b. Faculty Issues — Mentorship, Guidelines for Course Development; Rubric for Course Evaluation
[tem tabled.

¢. Accreditation and Other Legal Issues
Item tabled.

d. Website avconline.ave.edu and Data Collection
Item tabled.

8. ADJOURNMENT
A motion was made and seconded to adjourn the February 26, 2013 Distance Education and Technology
Committee meeting at 4:40 p.m. Motion carried.

Dr. Nancy Bednar Priscilla Jenison Ken Sawicki Joseph West
Dr. Charlotte Forte-Parnell | Greg Krynen Rick Shaw Mike Wilmes
Walter Briggs 11 Dr. Scott Lee John Toth Brandon Zavala
Charles Hood Dr. Tom O’Neil Scott Tuss

MEMBERS ABSENT
Ron Mummaw

GUESTS PRESENT/EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS
Dan Scott

NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY
Antelope Valley College prohibits discrimination and harassment based on sex, gender, race, color, religion, national origin or
ancestry, age, disability, marital status, sexual orientation, cancer-related medical condition, or genetic predisposition. Upon
request, we will consider reasonable accommodation to permit individuals with protected disabilities to (1) complete the
employment or admission process, (b) perform essential job functions, (c) enjoy benefits and privileges of similarly-situated
individuals without disabilities, and (d) participate in instruction, programs, services, activities, or events.

Approved: February 26, 2013 Distance Education & Technology Committee Meeting






The cover design is by Mark Favazza (www.favazza.com).
Copyright ©2013 by Babson Survey Research Group and Quahog Research Group, LLC.

Permission is hereby granted for all non-commercial use of this report provided:
*  Notification is provided to bsrg@babson.edu, and
*  Proper attribution is included.
Commercial use may also be granted — inquire at bsrg@babson.edu.



CONTENTS

ACKNOWIEAZEMENLS ...t sssssrsss !
PAIENETS oot sssstsessessssssssasatsssssssssssssssssasss s sabssssssssssnssstsssssnssns 2
EXECULIVE SUMMANY oo smsessssssssssssssesssmsissssssssessons 3
Massive Open Online Courses (MOOCS) ... 3
Is Online Learning StrAteZICY ........ccvievnimennmemieniosemmesomssussnsnsssssssnsassssstssmasesssssessssssssstsssssssssssass 4
How Many Students are Learning Onlingl..........cccmsmnmsmmsmssssisins 4
Does it Take More Faculty Time and Effort to Teach Online? .........cocvecsnniinsissneesssansensons 5
Are Learning Outcomes in Online Comparable to Face-to-Face! ..., 5
Has Faculty Acceptance of Online Increased? ... 6
Barriers to Widespread Adoption of Online Learning ..., 6
What is Onling Learning? ... 7
SUIVEY FINAINGS couvviiiimimnnisssnss i sssssisssessssssssstssstssssssssssssssssmsssssssssssssssssssnsssass 8
Massive Open Online Courses (MOOCS) ..., 8
Are We Heading for Onling 2.07 ... 14
Is Online Learning StrategiC? ......imiimimusmisimimmsssaissssos 6
How Many Students are Learning OnliNel.........ccnniimmmmsans 17
Who Offers ONlINEY ... 20
Does it Take More Faculty Time and Effort to Teach Online? ........covenccniirvcirscenns 22
Are Learning Outcomes in Online Comparable to Face-to-Face? ........cmeinincnnnienns 24
Has Faculty Acceptance of Online Increased? ... 27
Barriers to Widespread Adoption of Onling Learning ..........coeecesersesresmsscssssnssrssersessssassrsens 29
SUrvey MethodolOgy ... 32
TADIES oot s s s SRS SS RS REsROR SR b e R0 33



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This publication, Changing Course: Ten Years of Tracking Online Education in the
United States, is the tenth annual report in this series. The report series was
initially known as the Sloan Online Survey in recognition of our founding sponsor
the Alfred P. Sloan Foundation. Ralph Gomory, now President Emeritus of the
Sloan Foundation and A. Frank Mayadas, currently Senior Advisor to the Sloan
Foundation saw the need for the first of these reports and continued that
commitment for eight years. The Sloan Foundation supported an independent
study with full privacy for all respondents as well as free distribution of all report
publications. We thank them for this.

We aiso thank our current partners, the Sloan Consortium and Pearson, for
continuing to support the current research with this same degree of
independence and autonomy:

* The Sloan Consortium — one of the first professional organizations in
online education and our report distributor for the past nine years.

* Pearson — has brought a wide array of experience in publishing and
higher education to the project.

Beginning in 2006, the College Board agreed to include our online enroliment
questions as part of their Annual Survey of Colleges, providing increased
coverage of all of US higher education institutions. We thank them for seeing
the value in our reports and being such a pleasure to work with.

As always, we want to thank the people most important to these survey reports
— the thousands of respondents who took the time to provide us with such
detailed and thoughtful responses. Ye understand you are very busy people, so
we very much appreciate your effort. These reports would not be possible
without you, and we hope you find them useful.

Co-Directors
Babson Survey Research Group
January 2013



PARTNERS

Pearson

Pearson has brought a wide array of experience in higher education to this project and will
be producing an Infographic highlighting the results.

Pearson, the world's leading learning company, has global reach and market-leading
— businesses in education, business information and consumer publishing (NYSE: PSO).
Pearson helps people and institutions break through to improved outcomes by providing
innovative print and digital education materials, including personalized learning products
such as MyLab and Mastering, education services including custom publishing, content-
independent platforms including the EQUELLA digital repository, and the Pearson
LearningStudio online learning platform and OpenClass online learning environment.

The Sloan Consortium

The Sloan Consortium (Sloan-C) is a long-time supporter and distributor of the national
online learning reports in this series for the past nine years.

The Sloan Consortium is an institutional and professional leadership organization dedicated
to integrating online education into the mainstream of higher education, helping institutions
and individual educators improve the quality, scale, and breadth of education. Originally
funded by the Alfred P. Sloan Foundation, Sloan-C is now a non-profit, member sustained
organization.

Alfred P, Sloan Foundation

The Alfred P. Sloan Foundation is the founding sponsor of this report series. The authors
wish to thank them for their support for the first eight years of this project.

The Alfred P. Sloan Foundation makes grants in science, technology and the quality of
American life. It's Anytime, Anyplace Learning program seeks to make high quality learning,
education and training available anytime and anywhere,

THE STUDY DESIGN, SURVEY ADMINISTRATION, ANALYSIS AND REPORT PRODUCTION FOR
THIS SERIES OF ONLINE LEARNING SURVEY REPORTS ARE THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF
THE BABSON SURVEY RESEARCH GROUP. NO INDIVIDUAL-LEVEL DATA IS SHARED WITH
PARTNER ORGANIZATIONS.



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Changing Course: Ten Years of Tracking Online Education in the United States is the
tenth annual report on the state of online learning in U.S. higher education. The
survey is designed, administered and analyzed by the Babson Survey Research
Group. Data collection is conducted in partnership with the College Board,
This year's study, like those for the previous nine years, tracks the opinions of
chief academic officers and is aimed at answering fundamental questions about
the nature and extent of online education. Based on responses from more than
2,800 colleges and universities, the study addresses:

Massive Open Online Courses (MOOCs)

Background: Massive Open Online Courses (MOOCs) have generated a
considerable about of press coverage over the past year. While MOOCs have been
around for a while, the new level of attention may have altered higher education
leader’s perceptions and plans for MOOCs and other online offerings.

The evidence: Only a very small segment of higher education institutions are
now experimenting with MOOCs with a somewhat larger number in the planning
stages. Most institutions remain undecided.

+ Only 2.6 percent of higher education institutions currently have a MOOC,
another 9.4 percent report MOOC:s are in the planning stages.

+ The majority of institutions (55.4%) report they are still undecided about
MOOCs, while under one-third (32.7%) say they have no plans for a MOOC,

+ Academic leaders remain unconvinced that MOOC:s represent a sustainable
method for offering online courses, but do believe they provide an important
means for institutions to learn about online pedagogy.

+ Academic leaders are not concerned about MOOC instruction being
accepted in the workplace, but do have concerns that credentials for MOOC
completion will cause confusion about higher education degrees.



Is Online Learning Strategic?

Background: Previous reports in this series noted the proportion of institutions that
see online education as a critical component of their long-term strategy has shown small
by steady increases over time. Does this trend continue for 20127

The evidence: When this report series began in 2002, less than one-half of all
higher education institutions reported online education was critical to their long-
term strategy. That number is now close to seventy percent.

+ The proportion of chief academic leaders that say online learning is critical to
their long-term strategy is now at 69.1 percent — the highest it has been for
this ten-year period.

+ Likewise, the proportion of institutions reporting online education is not
critical to their long-term strategy has dropped to a new low of | 1.2 percent.

How Many Students are Learning Online!?

Background: For every year of this report series online enroliments have increased
at rates far in excess of those of overall higher education. The question has always
been at what point will we see online enrollment begin to plateau? Overall enroliments
for higher education dipped this year for the first time in years — will this translate into a
slowing for online as well?

The evidence: The number of additional students taking at least one online
course grew as much this year as it did last year.

+ The number of students taking at least one online course increased by over
570,000 to a new total of 6.7 million.

+ The online enrollment growth rate of 9.3 percent is the lowest recorded in
this report series.

+ The proportion of all students taking at least one online course is at an all-
time high of 32.0 percent.



Does it Take More Faculty Time and Effort to Teach Online?

Background: An earlier finding of this report series was, contrary to some
expectations, teaching an online course requires more time and effort from faculty than
teaching a face-to-face course. Is this still the case?

The evidence: The perception of academic leaders of the relative effort for
faculty to teach an online course has shown little change over the past six years.

+ The percent of academic leaders that believe it takes more faculty time and
effort to teach online has increased from 41.4 percent in 2006 to 44.6
percent this year.

+  Private for-profit institutions are the lone group whose level of agreement
has dropped (from 31.6 percent in 2006 to 24.2 percent in 2012).

Are Learning Outcomes in Online Comparable to Face-to-Face!

Background: The reports in this series have consistently found most chief academic
officers rate the learning outcomes for online education “as good as or better” than
those for face-to-face instruction, but a consistent minority consider online to be inferior.
Do academic leaders still hold the same opinion, given the continued growth in the
numbers of online students?

The evidence: The 2012 results show some small improvements in the
perception of the relative quality of online instruction as compared to face-to-

face.

+ In the first report of this series in 2003, 57.2 percent of academic leaders
rated the learning outcomes in online education as the same or superior to
those in face-to-face. That number is now 77.0 percent.

+ A minority (23.0%) of academic leaders continue to believe the learning
outcomes for online education are inferior to those of face-to-face instruction,

+ Academic leaders at institutions with online offerings have a much more
favorable opinion of the relative learning outcomes for online courses than
do those at institutions with no online offerings.



Has Faculty Acceptance of Online Increased?

Background: For the past nine years no more than one-third of chief academic
officers report that their faculty accept the value and legitimacy of online education.

The evidence: While the number of programs and courses online continue to
grow, the perception of chief academic officers of the acceptance of this learning
modality by faculty has decreased in the most recent year.

+ Only 30.2 percent of chief academic officers believe their faculty accept the
value and legitimacy of online education. This rate is lower than the rate
recorded in 2004.

+ Chief academic officers at institutions with fully online programs have the
most positive view of their faculty acceptance, but even for them the
proportion agreeing is less than a majority (38.4 percent).

Barriers to Widespread Adoption of Online Learning

Background: While the majority of academic leader cite online education as critical
for their long-term strategy, they also continue to express concerns about a number of
barriers that will impact the growth on online.

The evidence: In addition to the lack of faculty acceptance, covered elsewhere
in this report, academic leaders express concerns about the need for more
discipline on the part of online students and lower retention rates,

+ The proportion of academic leaders who cite the need for more discipline on
the part of online students as a barrier has increased from just over 80
percent in 2007 to 88.8 percent in 2012.

+ The perception of a majority of chief academic officers at all types of
institutions is lower retention rates for online courses remain a barrier to
the growth of online instruction.

+ The proportion of academic leaders who believe a lack of acceptance of
online degrees by potential employers is a barrier has remained at just over
40 percent.



WHAT 1S ONLINE LEARNING!?

The focus of this report is online education. To ensure consistency the same
definitions have been used for al ten years of these national reports. These
definitions were presented to the respondents at the beginning of the survey and
then repeated in the body of individual questions where appropriate.

Online courses are those in which at least 80 percent of the course content is
delivered online. Face-to-face instruction includes courses in which zero to 29
percent of the content is delivered online; this category includes both traditional
and web facilitated courses. The remaining alternative, blended (sometimes
called hybrid) instruction has between 30 and 80 percent of the course content
delivered online. While the survey asked respondents for information on all
types of courses, the current report is devoted to only online learning.

While there is considerable diversity among course delivery methods used by
individual instructors, the following is presented to illustrate the prototypical
course classifications used in this study.

Schools may offer online learning in a variety of ways. The survey asked
respondents to characterize their face-to-face, blended, and online learning by
the level of the course (undergraduate, graduate, non-credit, etc.). Similarly,
respondents were asked to characterize their face-to-face, blended, and online
program offerings by level and discipline.



SURVEY FINDINGS

Massive Open Online Courses (MOOCs)

Over the last year we have seen the growth in MOOC:s with the creation of non-

profit organizations (Mitx, Edx) or for-profit commercial entities (Coursera,
Udacity) partnering with multiple institutions and
creating an online platform for course enrollment
and distribution. Although the concept of
Massive Open Online Courses has been around
for some time, and the term MOOC was coined
in 2008 by Dan Barwick!, this year's survey finds

¥No Plans only 2.6 percent report they currently offer
MOOC:s and slightly less than ten percent (9.4%)

Plans for MOOCs - 2012

®NotDeclded 1 ve plans to offer them. An additional one-third

N Planning of all institutions report they have no plans for
adding MOOC:s (32.7%), leaving the bulk of all

®Have institutions (55.4%) still undecided. Matching the

pattern of offerings of online courses and
programs over the last ten years, it is the public
universities that currently have the higher rates of
offering MOOC:s (4.7%) and the private, for profit
schools are most likely to be in the planning stages (15.0%).

When examined by Carnegie classification, it is the research universities (Doctoral/
Research institutions) that are in the lead. They are almost twice as likely to be
offering MOOC:s or planning to offer MOOCs (9.8% vs. the next highest of 4.5%
for Specialized institutions in offerings and 21.4% vs. the next highest of 11.8% for
Master’s level institutions for planning).

Plans for MOOGCs - 2012

70%

60% e=$mSpecialized e
[

50% Associates
e@maccalaureate

40% - e
e Masters

30% e Doctoral/ Research

20%

10%

0% L v L] 1
Will Not be Adding a MOOC  Not Yet Decided About a Planning to Add MOOC Have MOOC Offering(s)

MOOC Offering(s)

: Barwick, Danlel W.. "Views: Does Class Size Matter?". Inslde Higher Ed, Retrleved October 3, 2011,



70%
60%
50%
40%

30% +
20%
10% 1
0% -

60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

There is also a relationship between the size of the institution and whether or
not they have or are planning on a MOOC. The largest schools (15000+ total
students) have a higher rate of offering MOOCs (8.9%) and over twenty percent
(21.4%) are in the planning stage.

Although the planning of MOOCs appears to follow the same pattern of
adoption as for online courses and programs, it is the institutions with no
current online offerings that have taken an early lead in actually offering MOOC:s.
Paradoxically, these are the type of institutions that are also in the majority of
schools that are not planning to ever offer MOOCs. Institutions with online
courses and full programs are in the majority of schools planning to offer
MOOCs (13.2% vs. 4.0% vs. 3.2%).

Plans for MOOGCs - 2012

Will Not be Adding a NotYet DecidedAbouta  Planning to Add MOOC  Have MOOC Offering(s)

MOOC MOOC Offering(s)
M Online Courses and Full Programs ~ ®Online Courses Only  ®No Online

Among those institutions that are planning or currently offering MOOC:s, over
half (50.2%) in the planning stage intend to work or partner with an outside
organization to offer their MOOCs. This is a greater proportion planning to
work with others than among those that already have a MOOC (37.0%).

Percent Working with Others on a MOOC - 2012

Planning to Add a MOOC Currenty Have a MOOC

Chief academic officer’s opinions about the sustainability, scalability, and
acceptance of MOOC:s in higher education are diverse. Responses on these
issues show many institutions are still on the sidelines with a “Neutral” response.



Overall, academic leaders are split in their opinions about MOOC:s as a sustainable
method for offering courses with 27.8 percent agreeing, 27.0 percent disagreeing,
and most Chief Academic Officers (45.2%) neutral. However, almost twice as
many respondents who will not be adding any MOOC:s (39.7%) believe MOOCs
are not a sustainable method than those institutions that are undecided (21.5%) or
in the planning stages (18.1%) with those already offering MOOC:s at 21.7 percent.
It is somewhat surprising that chief academic officers at public institutions, with the
highest percent of institutions already offering MOOC:s, also represent the highest
percent of institutions believing MOOC: are not a sustainable method for offering
courses. The opinions of the sustainability by Carnegie classification shows
Baccalaureate institutions have the highest level of disagreement. However, among
all types of institutions, “Neutral” is the modal opinion.

MOOCs Are a Sustainable Method for Offering Courses - 2012

Doctoral/ Research

Masters

Baccalaureate

Assoclates

Spechalized

B Disagree

B Neutral

B Agree

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Whether or not an institution already offers online courses and/or full programs
does influence the opinion of MOOC: as a sustainable method. While the modal
response continued to be “Neutral,” only 18.5 percent of institutions with no
online offerings agreed MOOCs were sustainable compared to 30.7 percent of
institutions with online courses and 28.7 percent for institutions with online
courses and full programs.



70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

There is relatively high level of agreement among chief academic officers that
MOOC:s represent an important way for institutions to learn about online
pedagogy. Less than 20% of all institutions disagree with this statement and this
is also seen when examined by type of institution (Private for-profit, Private
nonprofit, or Public). There are some changes in the distribution of opinions
when Carnegie classification is used to divide the respondents. Chief academic
officers in Baccalaureate and Masters-level institutions are more likely to disagree
that MOOC:s are important for learning about online pedagogy (22.0% and
22.,9%, respectively, and Doctoral/Research institutions are most likely to agree
(60.0%). Here again, schools with no online offerings are the least likely to see
MOOC:s as pedagogically important (40.6%).

MOOCs Are Important for Institutions to Learn About Online

Pedagogy - 2012
edmAgree @®Neutral =®Disagree /
Speclalized Assoclates Baccalaureate Masters Doctoral/ Research

Do MOOC:s help us understand the scalability and demand for online courses!?
Academic leaders at institutions that offer online courses and/or fully online
programs overwhelmingly agree they do (60.0% with online courses or full
programs and 57.8% of institutions with online courses) but only 42.2 percent of
those at institutions with no online presence agree, Less than half the private
for-profit institutions agree with the statement (47.4%), perhaps because they are
already deeply entrenched in offering online courses and programs and do not
see the gain from entering this (free) market.



It is interesting that only a minority of chief academic officers believe MOOCs
have the potential to attract potential students to their institutions (43.5%
overall). Given this response, it may be surprising that institutions are entering
this type of course offering at all. Perhaps they are taking the longer view and
see this as an alternative revenue stream for the future or as a way to build their
institution’s brand awareness. Even schools with fully online programs have only
a slim majority (50.4% agreeing) that believe students will be attracted to an
institution based on enrollment in a MOOC. When examined by size of
institution, some differences are evident, The largest schools agree MOOCs may
attract students (59.6%) but there is no clear pattern by size among the smaller
schools. Only the respondents of mid-size schools (3,000 — 7,500) also have a
majority who agree (57.7%).

MOOCs Can be Used to Attract Potential Students - 2012

70%
60%
50%
40%
30% 1
20%
10% -

Under 1500 1500 - 2999 3000 - 7499 7500 - 14999 15000+
BAgree WNeutrzl ®Disagree

A small majority of chief academic officers agree MOOC:s are good for students
to determine if online instruction is appropriate for them, with an equal number
either neutral or disagreeing (50.6% agree vs. 30.9% neutral and 18.6% disagree).
These percentages are relatively consistent across type of school and Carnegie
classification but the responses show some differences by size of institution and
presence in online offerings. Smaller and mid-sized institutions are more likely to
believe MOOC:s offer a way for students to determine if online instruction is
appropriate while the largest institutions disagree. Possibly because the larger
institutions already offer many online courses and programs, these institutions
believe their students are already familiar with online instruction. However,
respondents from schools with online courses or both courses and programs
show a higher percent of agreement than schools with no online presence
(53.4%, 50.7% and 41.7%, respectively).

MOOCs are Good for Students to Determine if Online Instruction is Appropriate - 2012

Under 1500 1500 - 2999 3000 - 7499 7500 - 14999 15000+




70%
60%

50%
40%
30% 1
20% o
10% -
0% -

With respect to the acceptance of MOOC coursework in the workplace, only a
minority of respondents do not believe this coursework will be accepted. Here
again, it is the chief academic officers at schools with no online offerings that
show the largest percent agreement that MOOC instruction will not be accepted
(30.3% vs. 17.7% for schools with online courses and 17.0% for schools with

online courses and programs).

MOOC Instruction Will Not be
Accepted in the Workplace - 2012

HAgree

®Neutral

B Disagree

Not surprisingly, many respondents for all types and sizes of schools believe
credentials for MOOC completion will cause confusion about higher education
degrees (55.2% overall). Schools having no online courses show the highest
agreement (67.0%) followed by Baccalaureate institutions with 62.4 percent,
Doctoral/Research universities with 60.9 percent, and private, for-profit schools
with 57.7 percent agreeing MOOC credentials will cause confusion about higher
education degrees. A majority of every group of academic leaders agree that
credentials for MOC completion will cause confusion.

Percent Agreeing: Credentials for MOOC Completion Will
Cause Confusion - 2012

Specialized

Assoclates

Baccalaureate

Masters

Doctoral/ Research



Are We Heading for Online 2.0?

Are MOOC:s the next paradigm for online education? Will we now begin to see
a rethinking of online course structure and delivery! To explore the readiness
of institutions to evolve their online, chief academic officers at institutions with
online offerings were asked to rate their institution’s potential. The academic
leaders were queried as to how they would rate their own institution versus
others on the ability to scale their online offerings and their ability to harness
online technology to develop new and innovative courses.

Approximately one-third of chief academic officers at institutions with online
offerings currently believe their institution is Above Average or Somewhat Above
Average in their ability to scale their online offerings (34.7%) or to use online
technology to develop innovative new courses (32.6%).

Rank: Ability to Scale Our Online Rank: Use Online Technology to
Offerings - 2012 Develop Innovative New Courses -

2012

B Above Average B Above Average
B Somewhat B Somewhat
Above Average .ﬁt::g‘:""‘&e
W Average
BSomewhat
W Somewhat Below Average

]
Below Average Below Average

Larger institutions (as measured by total enrollment) see themselves in a better
position to scale their online offerings. Over forty-five percent of institutions
with 7,500 or more total students rank themselves as Above Average or Somewhat
Above Average in their ability to scale their online offerings. This compares to
only about thirty percent of the smaller institutions (under 3,000 total
enrolments) that rank themselves thus,

Rank:Ability to Scale Our Online Offerings - 2012

55%

45%
40%
35%
30%
25% 1
20% 1
15% 1
10%
5% ]

Under 1500 1500 - 2999 3000 - 7499 7500 - 14999 15000+

WAbove Average W Somewhat Above Average

14



45%
40%
5%
0%
5%
20%
15%
10%

5%

Larger institutions also see themselves in a better position to develop innovative new
courses. Nearly forty-five percent of institutions with 7,500 or more total students
rank themselves as Above Average or Somewhat Above Average on this dimension.

Rank: Use Online Technology to Develop Innovative New
Courses - 2012

TEEE =

Under 1500 1500 - 2999 3000 . 7499 7500 - 14999 15000+

B Above Average @ Somewhat Above Average

When examined by Carnegie classification, it is the two-year Associates
institutions that believe themselves to be in the lead to scale their offerings and
the Doctoral/Research that feel they are best prepared to develop innovative
new courses.

Rank:Ability to Scale Our Online Offerings - 2012

=EEEEL

Speclalized Associates Baccalaureate Masters Doctoral/ Research

S Above Average W Somewhat Above Average

Rank: Use Online Technology to Develop Innovative New
Courses - 2012

Specialized Assoclates Baccalaureate Masters Doctoral/ Research

WAbove Average M Somewhat Above Average

I5



Is Online Learning Strategic?

When this report series began in 2002, less than one-half of all higher education
institutions reported online education was critical to their long-term strategy.
That number is now close to seventy percent. After remaining steady for a
number of years, the proportion of chief academic officers reporting online
education is critical to their institution’s long-term strategy displayed small
increases for each of the previous three years - a trend that continues this year.
The percentage of institutions that agree “Online education is critical to the long-
term strategy of my institution” reached its highest level in 2012 (69.1%). The
percent disagreeing has held steady at just over ten percent for all ten years of
the survey.

Online Education is Critical to the Long-term Strategy of my Institution -
Fall 2002 to Fall 2012

80%

70%

60%

50% -

*Agree
*WoNeutral

20%

30%% '_—i*—'—.__
— -8

o | — g~

0%

Fall 2002 Fall2003  Fall 2004 Fall 2005 Fall 2006  Fall 2007

Fall 2009 Fall 2010 Fall 2001 Fall 2012

As noted in previous reports, not all institutions that profess to believe online
education is critical also include online as a component of their strategic plan.
There has been a consistent “‘gap” between those who profess online is critical
and those that have specifically included online within their strategic plan. This
year is no different — just over sixty percent of those institutions with full online
programs say online significantly represented in their strategic plan. Among
those with only online courses, the number is even lower (30.4%).

Percent Agreeing: Online Education is Significantly Represented in
My Institution's Formal Strategic Plan

70%
60% 1
50% 1
40% 1
30% 1
20% 1
10% 1

0%

Online Courses and full programs Online Courses only

16



How Many Students are Learning Online?

For years the number of postsecondary students in the United States has
increased — driven by both demographics (the increasing number of persons
graduating from high school) and economic factors (where bad economic times
are often good for higher education enrollments). However, higher education
made news this year when it was reported that the total number of students
enrolled at U.S. higher education institutions had actually dropped2,

In the face of the softening in the growth of overall enroliments the number of
students taking at least one online course continued to increase at a robust rate.
There were 572,000 more online students in fall 201 | than in fall 2010 for a new
total of 6.7 million students taking at least one online course. This is a slightly
larger numeric increase as seen for fall 2009 to fall 2010. It also is very close to
the average increase seen for each of the last nine periods (which produced an
average growth of 568,000 students per year).

Total and Online Enroliment in Degree-granting Postsecondary Institutions — Fall 2002 through Fall

2011
Online
Students Enrollment Online
Annual Taking at Increase Annual Enrollment
Growth Rate Least One over Growth Rate | as a Percent
Total Total Online Previous Online of Total
Enrollment Enrollment Course i Enrollment Enrollment

2 Beckie Supiano, “College Enroliment Dropped Last Year, Preliminary Data Show", The Chronicle of Higher Education, October 9,
2012,



22,500,000

20,000,000

17,500,000 -

15,000,000
12,500,000
10,000,000

7,500,000

5,000,000

2,500,000 1

0

While the absolute number of additional students taking online courses continues
to increase at rates similar to previous years, the percentage growth that this
represents is lower because the growth is now on a much larger base. The most
recent estimate, for fall 201 |, shows an increase of 9.3 percent in the number of
students taking at least one online course, which is the lowest rate of growth
observed over the study time period. While the growth rate may be slowing, it
is still well in excess of the growth of the overall higher education student body.
The increase from 1.6 million students taking at least one online course in fall
2002 to the 6.7 million for fall 201 | represents a compound annual growth rate
of 17.3 percent. For comparison, the overall higher education student body has
grown at an annual rate of 2.6 percent during this same period — from 16.6
million in fall 2002 to 21.0 million for fall 201 13.

Total and Online Enrollment in Degree-granting Postsecondary
Institutions: Fall 2002 - Fall 201 |

sd=Overall
=@=0nline

T T T T T T T 3

Fall 2002 Fali 2003 Fall 2004 Fall 2005 Fall 2006 Fall 2007 Fail 2008 Fall 2009 Fall 2010 Fall 2011

Last year this report speculated the slower rate of growth in the number of
students taking at least one online course might have been the first sign that the
upward rise in online enrollments was approaching a plateau. The results this
year show that while the growth rate may be slowing, there has been no drop in
the numeric increase in the number of online students. And, while lower than
previous years, a growth rate approaching ten percent on the larger current base
of students is still substantial. A plateau for online enrollments may be
approaching, but there is no evidence that it has yet arrived.

3 Projections of Education Statistics to 2020, National Center for Education Statistics



The proportion of higher education students taking at least one online course
now stands at 32 percent. For comparison, the first year of this study (fall 2003)
found slightly less than ten percent of all higher education students were taking at
least one online course. The proportion has continued its steady increase almost
linearly over this ten-year time span4,

Online Enrollment as a Percent of Total Enrollment: Fall 2002 -

Fall 2011
35%
30%
5%
20%
15%
10%
) ‘]
0% -
Fall 2002  Fall2003  Fall2004  Fall 2005  Fall2006  Fall 2007  Fall2008  Fall 2009  Fall 2010 Fall 2011

4
Note the percentage of students taking at least one online course has been recalculated as compared to previous reports to reflect
revised overall enroliment numbers from the Natlonal Center for Educatlonal Statlstlcs,

19



Who Offers Online!?

The first report in this series measured at total of 1.6 million higher education
students in fall 2002 who were taking at least one of their courses online. Every
year since then that number has shown a substantial increase. What is producing
this growth — is it due to institutions that had no online offerings in 2002 entering
the online market, does it come from those pioneering institutions that have
continued to grow the size of their offerings over time, or does it come from the
for for-profit sector growing their institutions?

Even ten years ago the vast majority (71.7%) of higher education institutions had
some form of online offering, leaving only 28.3 percent without any online. The
number of institutions with no online has dropped to less half this value for 2012
(13.5% with no online offerings in 2012). A major change has also occurred in the
nature of the online offerings — a far larger proportion of higher education
institutions have moved from offering only online courses to providing complete
online programs (62.4% in 2012 as compared to 34.5% in 2002).

Type of Online Offerings - 2002

B Online Courses
and Full Programs

B Online Courses
Only

¥ No offerings

Type of Online Offerings - 2012

B Online Courses and
Full Programs

8 Onllne Courses
Only

B No offerings

20



In what type of institutions has this change occurred? Virtually all public
institutions had online offerings in 2002, so the overall growth in the number for
2012 was small. One big change for these schools was the big gain in the
proportion whose online offerings now include complete online programs (48.9%
in 2002 and 70.6% in 2012). The number of private nenprofit institutions with
online offerings had the greatest increase, with a doubling of the proportion with
full online programs (from 22.1% in 2002 to 48.4% in 2012).

Type of Online Offerings - 2002 and 2012

0% 10% 20% Jox 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%

M Online Courses and Full Programs 8 Online Courses Only

Because almost all higher education institutions were already offering some form
of online in the fall of 2002 the growth in online enroliments could not have
come from an influx of new schools with online offerings. While there were a
number of colleges and universities with online in 2012 that did not have these
offerings in 2002, they are among the very smallest institutions (less than 1500
total enrollments), and thus did not have any major impact on the overall online
enrollment totals. The continued growth in online enroliments has come from
the transition of institutions with only a few online courses moving to offer fully
online programs, and from institutions with online programs expanding their
offerings and building their enroliments.

Type of Online Offerings - 2002 and 2012

2002 | 2012 2002 I 2012
3000 - 7499 7500 - 14999

2002 | 2012
15000+

2002 I 2012
Under 1500 1500 - 2999

EQnline Courses and full programs 8 Online Courses Only

21

100%



Does it Take More Faculty Time and Effort to Teach Online?

Even in the pre-MOOC days, one of the hopes for online education was that it
might be a more efficient means for delivering education. The theory was that
faculty could teach far more students by taking advantage of the new technology.
However, before the advent of MOOC:s, the prototypical online course in U.S.
higher education over the past decade has not been structured to provide large
increases in efficiency. Most online courses are very similar in design to existing
face-to-face courses. These courses typically run on the same semester
schedule, cover the same corpus of material, represent the same number of
credit hours, and are led by a single faculty member who is directly interacting
with his or her students.

One result of building online courses that mirror the existing face-to-face
framework has been they place additional demands on the faculty that teach
them. Academic leaders are well aware of this — they report they believe it takes
more time and effort for a faculty member to teach on online courses than to
teach a corresponding face-to-face course. In 2006 40.7 percent of academic
leaders reported they believed that it required more faculty time and effort to
teach an online course. Six years later the belief is held even more strongly — the
most recent results show 44.6 percent of chief academic officers now report this
to be the case, with only 9.7 percent disagreeing.

It Takes More Faculty Time and Effort
to Teach an Online Course Than a
Face-to-Face Course - 2012

W Agree
B Neutral

H Disagree

22



60%
50%
40%

30% 1
20% -
10% 1
0% -

Those academic leaders with greater exposure to online teaching are more likely
to report it takes more time and effort to teach online. Academic leaders at
institutions that do not have any online offerings (and can therefore be assumed
to have less direct evidence of the level of effort required) do hold a somewhat
more positive view. Eighteen percent of these leaders disagree that it takes
more time and effort (as compared to 9.7 percent for the overall sample).

One group of institutions, those that are for-profit, display a very different trend
from other colleges and universities. While more public institutions (55.2% in
2012 compared to 44.8% in 2006) and nonprofit institutions (45.3% in 2012
compared to 41.4% in 2006) now agree it takes more time and effort for faculty
to teach online courses, the results for for-profit institutions have moved in the
other direction. In 2006 for-profit institutions had a level of agreement (31.6%)
that was already significantly lower than those for other types of institutions.
While the level of agreement to this statement for pubic and nonprofit
institutions increased between 2006 and 2012, it decreased at for-profit
institutions. The percent of academic leaders at for-profit institutions agreeing it
takes more time and effort to teach online courses had dropped from 31.6
percent in 2006 to only 24.2 percent for 2012.

Percent Agreeing it Takes More Faculty Time and Effort to Teach
an Online Course - 2006 and 2012

Private for-profit Private nonprofit Public

B2006 82012

It may be that for-profit institutions have invested heavily in online learning —
basing much of their growth on building online programs. By building online
courses from scratch, and designing them to be taught by a large number of
(perhaps adjunct) faculty, they may have better optimized the level of effort that
will be required.

23



Are Learning Outcomes in Online Comparable to Face-to-Face!

50%
45%

40% 1

; l I i E :
2006

2003 2004

35%
0%

20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

The view that online education is “just as good as” face-to-face instruction is
decidedly mixed. The period of 2003 through 2009 displayed a small decrease in
the proportion of chief academic officers reporting the learning outcomes for
online education were Inferior or Somewhat Inferior to those for comparable face-
to-face courses. This proportion then held relatively steady between 2009 and
2011, Results for 2012 show a substantial improvement in the opinion of
academic leaders on the relative quality of the learning outcomes for online
education. The percent reporting that outcomes are Inferior or Somewhat Inferior
dropped from 32.4 percent in 2011 to only 23.0 percent for 2012. Much of this
drop was among those saying online learning was Inferior.

Proportion Reporting Learning Outcomes in Online
Education as Inferior Compared to Face-to-face: 2003 - 2012

W Somewhat Inferlor [

2009 2010 2011 2012

While there has been a recent increase in the proportion of academic leaders that
have a positive view of the relative quality of the learning outcomes for online
courses as compared to comparable face-to-face courses, there remains a sizable
minority that continue to see online as inferior. Over three-quarters of academic
leaders believe online is “just as good as” or better. However, this means almost
one-quarter of all academic leaders polled continue to believe the learning
outcomes for online courses are inferior to those for face-to-face instruction.

24



60%
55%
50%
45%
40%
35%
30%
5%
20%
15%
10%

5%

0%

A consistent finding over the ten years of these reports is the strong positive
relationship of academic leaders at institutions with online offerings also holding a
more favorable opinion of the learning outcomes for online education. Results
for 2012 continue this trend — chief academic officers at institutions without any
online offerings are five times as likely as those at institution with fully online
programs to report online learning outcomes are Inferior or Somewhat Inferior to
those for comparable face-to-face courses. It continues to be the case that the
more extensive the online offerings at an institution, the more positive their
leaders rate the relative quality of online learning outcomes.

Proportion Reporting Learning Outcomes in Online
Education as Inferior Compared to Face-to-face: 2012

8|nferior

8 Somewhat inferior

— L

Online Courses and Full Programs Online Courses Only No Offerings

It remains unclear, however, if it is that institutions with a positive opinion
towards online are more likely to implement online courses, or if it is that
institutions with experience with online develop a more positive attitude as their
experience grows. Regardless of the causal order, is remains clear academic
leaders at institutions with online offerings have a much more favorable opinion
of the learning outcomes in online courses and programs than those at
institutions without online offerings.

It is important to understand that chief academic officers are reporting their
personal perceptions about the relative quality of online and face-to-face instruction.
In some cases these academic leaders may be basing their opinions on detailed
analysis of the offerings at their own institutions. For others the opinion may only
be based conversations with peers, what they have read in the press, or any
number of other sources. The question arises; do institutions with online offerings
believe they have good means of accessing the quality of their offerings?

25



To examine that question, academic leaders were asked if they agreed with the
statement that “‘My institution has good tools in place to assess the quality of
online instruction” as well as a similar question directed at in-person instruction.
Roughly two-thirds of the academic leaders agreed they have good tools in place
to assess instructional quality, with the single exception of leaders at institutions
that offer only online courses and not fully online programs, where less than one-
half agree they have good tools to assess their online instruction.

My Institution Has Good Tools in Place to Assess the Quality of...

5 §  Institution Offers Online Courses
§
i
= &£ |Institution Offers Online Programs
o §  Institution Offers Online Courses
c
£ Institution Offers Online Programs
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%
BStrongly Agree B Agree
Chief academic officers are more positive about their institution’s ability to assess
instructional quality than are either academic technology administrators or
teaching faculty. Compared to the results from a representative national survey
of teaching faculty and academic technology administratorss shows academic
leaders to be ten to twenty percent more likely to agree or strongly agree that
their institution has good tools to assess in-person instruction. They are also
more positive about their institutions tools to assess online instruction — where
faculty members (especially those with no online teaching responsibilities) are far
more pessimistic.
My Institution Has Good Tools in Place to Assess the Quality of...
c
g Faculty No Online Teaching
4
Té Faculty Teaching Online
4
2- Academic Technology Administrators
Eg Faculty No Online Teaching
£ Faculty Teaching Online
£
5 Academic Technology Administrators

0% 10% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

20% 30%
BStrongly Agree W Agree

¢ Allen, |. Efalne, Jeff Seaman with Doug Lederman and Scott Jaschik, Conflicted: Faculty and Online Education, 2012, Inside Higher Ed,
Babson Survey Research Group, 2012

26



Has Faculty Acceptance of Online Increased!?

An important concern for those advocating online education has been the
continued resistance among many faculty members. Results for 2012 show chief
academic officers reported a slight decrease in faculty acceptance of online
instruction compared to the results reported for 201 1. Between 2002, when
this question was first asked, and 2007 the proportion of institutions reporting
their faculty accept the value and legitimacy of online education increased barely
six percentage points. This was followed by a small drop in 2009, an increase in
2011, and the latest drop. The proportion of academic leaders that report their
faculty accept the value and legitimacy of online education is once again at the
same level it was for 2004.

Faculty at My School Accept the Value and Legitimacy of Online Education ~ Fall 2002 to Fall

2012
Fall 2002 | Fall 2004 | Fall 2005 | Fall 2006 | Fall 2007 | Fall 2009 | Fall 2011 | Fall 20i2

The perceived acceptance rate by faculty varies widely between colleges and
universities with online offerings and those without such offerings. Only about
ten percent of chief academic officers at institutions with no online offering
report their faculty accept the value and legitimacy of online education. About
one-fifth (20.4% in 201 | and 18.6% in 2012) of academic leaders at institutions
that offer online courses but not fully online programs report their faculty accept
online education. Even among those institutions with full online programs less
than a majority (43.9% in 201 | and 38.4% in 2012) of chief academic officers say
their faculty fully accept online education. The perceived level of acceptance has
decreased over the past year at all three types of institutions.

Faculty at My School Accept the Value and Legitimacy of
Online Education - Fall 201 | and Fall 2012

50%

40%

30%

20% 1

10% 1

Courses and full programs Courses only No offerings
HFali 2011 ®Fall 2012

27



Not only do academic leaders have continuing concerns about the level of faculty
acceptance of online, they also believe faculty acceptance is critical. When asked
about the lack of acceptance of online instruction by faculty was an important
barrier to the widespread adoption of online education, a large majority rated it
as Important or Very Important. Fully one-quarter (25.6%) reported this was a
Very Important barrier, while an additional 41.2 percent said it was Important.

Lack of Acceptance of Online Instruction by
Faculty as a Barrier to to the Growth of
Online Instruction - 2012

® Very Important
®important
M Somewhat

Important
® Not Important

Between 2007 and 2012 the level of concern among chief academic officers that
the lack of acceptance of online by faculty represents a barrier to the widespread
adoption of online has seen a slight increase. The total reporting it as Important
or Very Important grew from 61.| percent in 2007 to 66.8 percent by 2012.

Lack of Acceptance of Online Instruction by Faculty as a Barrier to
the Growth of Online Instruction - 2007 and 2012

80%

70%

60% 1

50% 4

40% 1

30%

20% 1

10% -

0% T

0
2007 S important ®Very Important 012

28



Barriers to Widespread Adoption of Online Learning

60%

50%

40%

30% 1

20%

10% -

0% -

The online learning reports in this series track the opinions of chief academic
officers, knowing they have the primary responsibility for the conduct and
planning of each school's academic offerings. While these academic leaders are
often very positive about online education, with increasing numbers reporting
online is critical for their institutions’ long-term strategy and steadily growing
online enrolments, they do harbor a number of concerns. Concerns with the
quality of the learning outcomes for online education and the additional faculty
time and effort online requires are discussed elsewhere in this report.

One additional area of concern for academic leaders is their belief online learning
may not be appropriate for all students. In 2007 just over 80 percent reported
“Students need more discipline to succeed in online courses” as an Important or a
Very Important barrier to the widespread adoption of online education,
Experience with online education has only strengthened this view — the
proportion of academic leaders who report “Students need more discipline to
succeed in online courses” is an Important or a Very Important has increased to
88.8 percent for 2012.

The pattern of agreement has changed over time, with much larger numbers of
public and private nonprofit institutions now agreeing online students need more
discipline to succeed. Examining the proportion of academic leaders that cite this
as a Very Important barrier shows increases of over |10 percentage points for both
public (38.0% in 2007 to 50.8% in 2012) and private nonprofit (30.1% to 43.5%)
institutions. Leaders of for-profit institutions were much stronger in their belief
in 2007, and show a small drop in their level of concern for 2012 (54.6% to
49.7%). Their rates are now much more similar to their compatriots at the
other types of institutions.

Students Need More Discipline to Succeed in Online Courses
(% Very Important) 2007 and 2012

Public Private nonprofit Private for-profit

82007 ®2012

29



80%
70%
60%

50%
40% 1
30% |
20% 1
10% 1
0%

Private for-

A continuing concern among academic leaders at all types of institutions has been
their belief lower retention rates in online courses are a barrier to the growth of
online instruction. This was noted as an Important or a Very Important barrier by
over half (56.1%) of chief academic officers in 2007. This proportion increased by
an additional five percentage points the next year (61.9% for 2008). The results for
2012 show another increase — nearly three-quarters (73.5%) now rate lower
retention rates for online courses as an Important or a Very Important barrier.

Lower Retention Rates in Online Courses as a Barrierto the
Growth of Online Instruction - 2007, 2008, and 2012

2007

®important 2%% Important 012

The increased level of concern with retention rates for online courses occurs
across all types of institutions, with the greatest concerns coming among the for-
profits. In 2008 just under three-quarters (74.9%) of for-profit institutions rated
lower retention rates as an Important or a Yery Important barrier. For 2012 itis
now nearly ninety percent (89.7%). Public and nonprofit institutions have also
registered increases in the proportion reporting retention rates as a barrier, but
their numbers continue to be somewhat lower than those of the for-profits.

Lower Retention Rates in Online Courses as a Barrier to the
Growth of Online Instruction - 2008 and 2012

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
Wimportant ®Very Important

30



50%

40% 1
30% 1
20% 1
10% 1
0% -

One potential barrier that has changed very little is the level of concern among
chief academic leaders about the potential lack of acceptance of online education
by potential employers. The proportion reporting this as an Important or a Very
Important barrier has remained consistent over the years at around forty percent.
There was a very small increase between 2007 and 2008, and with the 2012
results being almost exactly the same as those for 2008.

Lack of Acceptance of Online Education by Potential Employers as
a Barrier to the Growth of Online Instruction - 2007, 2008, and 2012

2007 2008 2012
Bimporant ®Very Important

31



SURVEY METHODOLOGY

The sample for this analysis is comprised of all active, degree-granting institutions
of higher education in the United States.

The data for this report is collected by both the Babson Survey Research Group
and by the College Boardé. The College Board includes questions for this study
as part of its extensive data collection effort for its Annual Survey of Colleges.
Babson Survey Research Group and the College Board coordinate survey
instruments and sample outreach; each respondent institution receives identically
worded questions, and those that have responded to one survey are not asked
to respond to the same questions on the other.

All sample schools were sent an invitation email and reminders, inviting their
participation and assuring them that no individual responses would be released.
All survey respondents were promised they would be notified when the report
was released and would receive a free copy.

The sample universe contains 4,527 institutions; a total of 2,820 responses were
included in the analysis, representing 62.3 percent of the sample universe.
Because non-responding institutions are predominately those with the smallest
enrollments, the institutions included in the analysis represents 83.3 percent of
higher education enroliments. The 2012 responses were merged with the data
from the previous survey years (994 responses in 2003, 1,170 in 2004, 1,025 in
2005, 2,251 in 2006, 2,504 in 2007, 2,577 in 2008, 2,590 in 2009, 2,583 in 2010
and 2,512 in 201 1) for examination of changes over time.

Institutional descriptive data come from the College Board Annual Survey of
Colleges and from the National Center for Educational Statistics’ IPEDS database.
After the data were compiled and merged with the College Board Annual
College Survey and IPEDS database, responders and nonresponders were
compared to create weights, if necessary, to ensure that the survey results
reflected the characteristics of the entire population of schools. The responses
are compared for 35 unique categories based on the 2010 Carnegie Classification
of Institutions of Higher Education. These weights provide a small adjustment to
the results allowing for inferences to be made about the entire population of
active, degree-granting institutions of higher education in the United States.

€ Portions of the data used for this report was collected by The College Board as part of the Annual Survey of Colleges and is
Copyright © 2011-2012 The College Board.

32



TABLES

Massive Open Online Courses (MOOCs)

PLANS FOR MOOCSs -20]2

Will Not be Adding a MOOC 32.7%
Not Yet Decided About a MOOC  55.4%
Planning to Add MOOC Offering(s) 9.4%
Have MOOC Offering(s) 2.6%

PLANS FOR MOOCs -2012

Specialized Associates Baccalaureate Masters

Will Not be Adding a MOOC 39.5% 29.5% 38.8% 34.1%
Not Yet Decided About a MOOC 49.2% 59.2% 54.7% 50.3%
Planning to Add MOOC Offering(s) 6.8% 10.4% 4.3% 11.8%
Have MOOC Offering(s) 4.5% 9% 2.2% 3.7%
PLANS FOR MOOCs - 2012
Online Courses and Full

Programs Online Courses Only
Will Not be Addinga MOOC 25.6% 41.0%
Not Yet Decided About a MOOC 58.7% 53.0%
Planning to Add MOOC Offering(s) 13.2% 4.0%
Have MOOC Offering(s) 2.6% 2.0%
WORKING WITH OTHERS ON A MOOC - 2012
Planning to Add a MOOC  Currently Have a MOOC

50.2% 37.0%
MOOCS ARE A SUSTAINABLE METHOD £OR OFFERING COURSES
Doctorall
Specialized Associates Baccalaureate Masters Research

Agree 23.7% 29.2% 19.1% 29.0% 27.2%
Neutral 53.7% 46.9% 41.6% 40.7% 40.8%
Disagree 22.6% 24.0% 39.3% 30.4% 32.0%

33

Doctorall
Research
16.7%
52.1%
21.4%
9.8%

No Online
47.5%
45.6%

3.2%
3.6%



MOOCS ARE IMPORTANT FOR INSTITUTIONS TO LEARN ABOUT ONLINE
PEDAGOGY - 2012

Doctorall

Specialized Associates Baccalaureate Masters Research
Agree 48.8% 44.2% 49.2% 50.9% 60.6%
Neutral 34.8% 36.4% 28.8% 26.1% 24.5%
Disagree 16.5% 19.4% 22.0% 22.9% 14.9%

MOOCs CAN BE USED TO ATTRACT POTENTIAL STUDENTS - 2012
Under 1500 1500-2999 3000-7499 7500-14999 15000+

Agree 35.6% 41.6% 57.7% 39.1% 59.6%
Neutral 41.2% 34.0% 24.9% 37.6% 23.1%
Disagree 23.2% 24.4% 17.4% 23.3% 17.2%

MOOCSs ARE GOOD FOR STUDENTS TO DETERMINE IF ONLINE INSTRUCTION

IS APPROPRIATE - 2012
Under 1500 1500-2999 3000-7499 7500-14999 15000+

Agree 50.7% 52.5% 53.0% 44.1% 45.9%
Neutral 33.5% 31.9% 27.5% 27.1% 24,9%
Disagree 15.9% 15.5% 19.5% 28.8% 29.2%

MOOC INSTRUCTION WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED IN THE WORKPLACE -2012

Agree 18.6%
Neutral 45.4%
Disagree 36.0%

PERCENT AGREEING: CREDENTIALS FOR MOOC COMPLETION WILL CAUSE
CONFUSION - 2012

Doctoral/
Specialized Associates Baccalaureate Masters Research
Agree 51.0% 56.6% 62.4% 50.7% 60.9%

34



Are We Heading for Online 2.0?

CAMPUS RANK: ABILITY TO SCALE OUR ONLINE OFFERINGS - 2012

Above Average 14.3%
Somewhat Above Average 20.4%
Average 34.8%
Somewhat Below Average 22,6%
Below Average 7.8%

CAMPUS RANK: USING ONLINE TECHNOLOGY TO DEVELOP INNOVATIVE NEW
COURSES - 2012

Above Average 9.9%
Somewhat Above Average 22.7%
Average 32.5%
Somewhat Below Average 27.8%
Below Average 7.1%

CAMPUS RANK: ABILITY TO SCALE OUR ONLINE OFFERINGS

Under 1500 1500-2999 3000-7499 7500- 14999 15000+
Above Average 14.3% 9.9% 10.5% 23.4% 19.3%
Somewhat Above Average 16.8% 20.4% 24.1% 23.6% 28.7%

CAMPUS RANK: USING ONLINE TECHNOLOGY TO DEVELOP INNOVATIVE NEW COURSES
Under 1500 1500-2999 3000-7499 7500- 14999 15000+

Above Average 9.4% 9.8% 5.2% 13.8% 17.4%

Somewhat Above Average 19.2% 24.1% 22.8% 30.3% 27.1%

CAMPUS RANK: ABILITY TO SCALE OUR ONLINE OFFERINGS

Specialized Associates Baccalaureate Masters Doctoral/ Research
Above Average 12.0% 14.6% 16.9% 13.7% 16.3%
Somewhat Above Average 10.1% 27.5% 15.4% 18.4% 17.0%

CAMPUS RANK: USING ONLINE TECHNOLOGY TO DEVELOP INNOVATIVE NEW COURSES

Specialized  Associates Baccalaureate Masters Doctoral/ Research
Above Average 9.2% 10.5% 5.1% 12.6% 13.9%
Somewhat Above Average 19.7% 24.5% 26.9% 17.0% 32.5%

35



Is Online Learning Strategic?

ONLINE EDUCATION IS CRITICAL TO THE LONG-TERM STRATEGY OF MY INSTITUTION -
FALL 2002 TO FALL 2012

Fall 2002 Fall 2003 Fall 2004 Fall 2005 Fall 2006
Agree 48.8% 53.5% 56.0% 58.4% 59.1%
Neutral 38.1% 33.7% 30.9% 27.4% 27.4%
Disagree 13.1% 12.9% 13.1% 14.2% 13.5%

Fall 2007 Fall 2009 Fall 2010 Fall 2011 Fall 2012
Agree 58.0% 59.2% 63.1% 65.5% 69.1%
Neutral 27.0% 25.9% 24.6% 21.0% 19.7%
Disagree 15.0% 14.9% 12.3% 13.5% 11.2%

PERCENT AGREEING: ONLINE EDUCATION IS SIGNIFICANTLY REPRESENTED IN MY

INSTITUTION'S FORMAL STRATEGIC PLAN

Online Courses and Full Programs Online Courses Only
61.1% 30.4%

How Many Students are Learning Online?

TOTAL AND ONLINE ENROLLMENT IN DEGREE-GRANTING POSTSECONDARY
INSTITUTIONS - FALL 2002 THROUGH FALL 201 |

Students Online Online

Taking at  Enrollment  Annual  Enroliment
Annual Least Increase Growth asa

Growth One over Rate Percent of
Total Rate Total  Online Previous Online Total

Enrollment Enrollment  Course Year Enroliment Enrollment
Fall 2002 16,611,710 NA 1,602,970 NA NA 9.6%
Fall 2003 16,911,481 1.8% 1,971,397 368,427 23.0% 11.7%
Fall 2004 17,272,043 2,1% 2,329,783 358,386 18.2% 13.5%
Fall 2005 17,487,481 1.2% 3,180,050 850,267 36.5% 18.2%
Fall 2006 17,758,872 1.6% 3,488,381 308,331 9.7% 19.6%
Fall 2007 18,248,133 2.8% 3,938,111 449,730 12.9% 21.6%
Fall 2008 19,102,811 4.7% 4,606,353 668,242 16.9% 24.1%
Fall 2009 20,427,711 6.9% 5,579,022 972,669 21.1% 27.3%
Fall 2010 21,016,126 2.9% 6,142,280 563,258 10.1% 29.2%
Fall 2011 20,994,113 -0.1% 6,714,792 572,512 9.3% 32.0%

36



Who Offers Online?

TYPE OF ONLINE OFFERINGS - 2002
Online Courses and Full Programs  34.5%
Online Courses Only 37.2%
No offerings 28.3%

TYPE OF ONLINE OFFERINGS - 2012

Online Courses and Full Programs 62.4%
Online Courses Only 24.2%
No offerings 13.4%

TYPE OF ONLINE OFFERINGS - 2002 AND 2012
Online Courses and Full Programs  Online Courses Only

Private for-profit 2012 72.9% 12.1%
2002 48.9% 43.9%
Private nonprofit 2012 48.4% 30.3%
2002 22.1% 32.4%
Public 2012 70.6% 24.5%
2002 48.9% 43.9%

TYPE OF ONLINE OFFERINGS - 2002 AND 2012
Online Courses and full programs  Online Courses Only

nder 1500 2202 % 260%
1500 - 2999 %g?% §3;§?,f §§§§i
3000 - 7499 gg?% ‘;223 TSIZZZ
7500 - 14999 2002 o 7::3;2
15000+ §8‘,’§ Ziﬁgﬁ ﬁ:g;ﬁ

37



Does it Take More Faculty Time and Effort to Teach Online?

IT TAKES MORE FACULTY TIME AND EFFORT TO TEACH AN ONLINE COURSE THAN A
FACE-TO-FACE COURSE - 2012

Agree 44.6%
Neutral 45.7%
Disagree 9.7%

PERCENT AGREEING IT TAKES MORE FACULTY TIME AND EFFORT TO TEACH AN
ONLINE COURSE - 2006 AND 2012

Private for-profit Private nonprofit Public
2006 31.6% 41.4% 44.8%
2012 24.2% 45.3% 55.2%

38



Are Learning Outcomes in Online Comparable to Face-to-Face!

LEARNING OUTCOMES IN ONLINE EDUCATION COMPARED TO FACE-TO-FACE:

2003 -2011

2003
Inferior 10.7%
Somewhat inferior 32.1%
Same 44.9%
Somewhat superior 11.7%
Superior 0.6%

2004
10.1%
28.4%
50.6%
10.0%
1.0%

2006
7.8%
30.3%
45.0%
15.1%
1.8%

2009
9.5%
23.0%
53.0%
12.4%
2.1%

2010
9.8%
24.3%
48.4%
14.2%
3.4%

2011
9.7%
22.7%
51.1%
13.8%
2.7%

2012
5.3%
17.7%
56.4%
16.8%
37%

PROPORTION REPORTING LEARNING OUTCOMES IN ONLINE EDUCATION AS INFERIOR
COMPARED TO FACE-TO-FACE: 2012
Online Courses and Full

Somewhat inferior
Inferior

8%

Programs
10.7%

Online Courses Only
27.5%
2.5%

No Offerings

34.1%
21.7%

MY INSTITUTION HAS GOOD TOOLS IN PLACE TO ASSESS THE QUALITY OF...

Online Instruction

Online Programs

Online Courses

In-person Instruction

Online Programs
Online Courses

Strongly Agree
30.4%
15.6%
21.2%
31.9%

Agree
38.4%
31.6%
43.1%
41.4%

MY INSTITUTION HAS GOOD TOOLS IN PLACE TO ASSESS THE QUALITY OF..
Strongly Agree

Online Instruction

Faculty Teach Online
Faculty No Online Teaching

In-person Instruction Academic Technology Administrators

Faculty Teach Online
Faculty No Online Teaching

39

Academic Technology Administrators

16.5%
9.8%
3.6%
12.3%
12.5%
13.6%

Agree
34.0%
27.7%
16.3%
41.5%
36.6%
36.2%



Has Faculty Acceptance of Online Increased?

FACULTY AT MY SCHOOL ACCEPT THE VALUE AND LEGITIMACY OF ONLINE
EDUCATION -~ FALL 2002 TO FALL 2012

Fall 2002 Fall 2004 Fall 2005 Fall 2006
Agree 27.6% 30.4% 27.6% 32.9%
Neutral 65.1% 59.3% 57.8% 56.1%
Disagree 27.6% 10.3% 14.7% 11.0%

Fall 2007 Fall 2009 Fall 2011 Fall 2012
Agree 33.5% 30.9% 32.0% 30.2%
Neutral 51.9% 51.8% 56.5% 57.2%
Disagree 14.6% 17.3% 11.4% 12.6%

FACULTY AT MY SCHOOL ACCEPT THE VALUE AND LEGITIMACY OF ONLINE
EDUCATION -~ FALL 2011 AND FALL 2012

Courses and full programs Courses only No offerings
Fali 2011 43.9% 20.4% 13.0%
Fall 2012 38.4% 18.6% 10.0%

LACK OF ACCEPTANCE OF ONLINE INSTRUCTION BY FACULTY AS A BARRIER TO THE
GROWTH OF ONLINE INSTRUCTION - 2012

Very Important 25.6%
Important 41.2%
Somewhat Important 26.6%
Not Important 6.7%

LACK OF ACCEPTANCE OF ONLINE INSTRUCTION BY FACULTY AS A BARRIER TO THE
GROWTH OF ONLINE INSTRUCTION - 2007 AND 2012

Important Very Important
2007 36.9% 24.2%
2012 41.2% 25.6%

40



Barriers to Widespread Adoption of Online Learning

STUDENTS NEED MORE DISCIPLINE TO SUCCEED IN ONLINE COURSES (% VERY
IMPORTANT) 2007 AND 2012

Public Private nonprofit Private for-profit
2007 38.0% 30.1% 54.6%
2012 50.8% 43.5% 49.7%

LOWER RETENTION RATES IN ONLINE COURSES AS A BARRIER TO THE GROWTH OF
ONLINE INSTRUCTION - 2007, 2008, AND 2012

Important Very Important
2007 35.1% 21.0%
2008 42.1% 19.8%
2012 44.7% 28.8%

LOWER RETENTION RATES IN ONLINE COURSES AS A BARRIER TO THE GROWTH OF
ONLINE INSTRUCTION - 2008 AND 2012

Important Very Important
Private for-profit 2012 52.0% 37.7%
2008 50.1% 24.8%
Private nonprofit 2012 46.0% 23.8%
2008 38.9% 16.1%
. 2012 39.5% 29.0%
Public 2008 41.2% 20.8%

LACK OF ACCEPTANCE OF ONLINE EDUCATION BY POTENTIAL EMPLOYERS AS A
BARRIER TO THE GROWTH OF ONLINE INSTRUCTION - 2007, 2008, AND 2012

Important Very Important
2007 27.8% 11.7%
2008 31.0% 11.8%
2012 31.3% 11.5%

41



BABSON SURVEY RESEARCH GROUP

The study design, survey administration, analysis and report production for this series of online
learning reports are the responsibility of the Babson Survey Research Group.

http://www.onlinelearningsurvey.com/

The Babson Survey Research Group conducts regional, national, and international research,
including survey design, sampling methodology, data integrity, statistical analyses and reporting.

Sloan Series of National and Regional Surveys of Online Education

*  Going the Distance: Online Education in the United States, 201 |

*  Online Learning Trends in Private-Sector Colleges and Universities, 2011

* Class Differences: Online Education in the United States, 2010

*  Learning on Demand: Online Education in the United States, 2009

*  Staying the Course: Online Education in the United States, 2008

*  Online Nation: Five Years of Growth in Online Learning

*  Making the Grade: Online Education in the United States, 2006

*  Making the Grade: Online Education in the United States, 2006 - Midwestern Edition

*  Making the Grade: Online Education in the United States, 2006 - Southern Edition
*  Growing by Degrees: Online Education in the United States, 2005
* Growing by Degrees: Online Education in the United States, 2005 - Southern Edition

*  Entering the Mainstream: The Quality and Extent of Online Education in the United States, 2003 and
2004

*  Sizing the Opportunity: The Quality and Extent of Online Education in the United States, 2002 and
2003

Sloan K-12 Online Learning Survey Reports

*  Online Learning In lllinois High Schools: Has The Time Come!
* Class Connections: High School Reform and the Role of Online Learning
* K-12 Online Learning: A 2008 follow-up of the Survey of U.S. School District Administrators

* K-12 Online Learning: A Survey of U.S. School District Administrators

The A+P+L+U-Sloan National Commission on Online Learning
*  Online Learning as a Strategic Asset, Volume II: The Paradox of Faculty Voices: Views and
Experiences with Online Learning
*  Online Learning as a Strategic Asset: A Survey of APLU Presidents and Chancellors
*  Online Learning as a Strategic Asset: A Survey of NAFEO Presidents and Chancellors
* Online Learning as a Strategic Asset: A Survey of AIHEC Tribal College and University

42



